
Please ask for  Julie Britton: Telephone (01362) 656343 
e-mail: Julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 

Committee - POLICY DEVELOPMENT APOLICY DEVELOPMENT APOLICY DEVELOPMENT APOLICY DEVELOPMENT AND ND ND ND 

REVIEW PANEL 1REVIEW PANEL 1REVIEW PANEL 1REVIEW PANEL 1 

Date & Time - TUESDAY, 22ND MAY, 2007 AT 10.00 AM 

Venue - SWAFFHAM TOWN COUNCIL, THE 
ASSEMBLY ROOMS, SWAFFHAM 

 
 
 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 
 

Panel 1 Members: 
  
Mr J.P. Cowen (Chairman) 
Mr P.J. Duigan (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr S. Askew 
Mr A.P. Joel 
 

Mr K. Martin 
Mr I.A.C. Monson 
Mr J.D. Rogers 
Mrs P.A. Spencer 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Committee Services 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING 

ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE 

TELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONES    

Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 11 May 2007  
 

Public Document Pack



 
Policy Development and Review Panel 1 

22 May 2007 

 
 

PART A 
 

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 11 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 2007.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act, 
1972.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members' Code of 
Conduct requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and 
whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.  
 

 

6. LOCAL TRANSPORT REVIEW   

 Mr Clive Morris of ‘One’ Railway will be in attendance to address the 
meeting.  
 

 

7. WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING SCHEDULE  12 

 Members are asked to consider any additional items or topics for 
inclusion on the future Work Programme.  
 

 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 Members are asked to note that the next meeting is scheduled for 
Tuesday 19 June 2007 at 10.00 am, Breckland House, Thetford.  
 

 

 



 
Policy Development and Review Panel 1 

22 May 2007 

 

PROTOCOL 
 

The Working Style of the Policy Development & Review Panels 
 

This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted 
by the Policy Development & Review Panels (PD&RP) overseeing the Panel’s mode of operation. 
 
Member Leadership 
Members of the Panel will undertake scrutiny topics as directed by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission (O&SC) and will recognise that best practice identifies scrutiny as a Member-led activity. 
The Panel will expect Cabinet members, to take responsibility for answering their questions about 
topics which primarily relate to the Council’s activities. 
 
A Constructive Atmosphere 
Meetings of the Panel will be constructive and not judgmental. Panel recognises and accepts that 
effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People giving 
evidence at Panel should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack. 
 
Independence  
Members of the PD&RP will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party groups. 
 
Respect and Trust 
Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust. 
 
Consensus 
Members of the Panel will work together and, while recognising political allegiances, will attempt to 
achieve consensus and agreed recommendations. There will be recognition that the Panel has a 
primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community. 
 
Openness and Transparency 
The PD&RP’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for 
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Panel’s meetings will explain the discussion and debate 
so that they can be understood by an outside reader. 
 
Impartial and Independent Officer Advice 
Officers who advise and support the Panel will give impartial and independent advice, as officers 
support all members of the Council. 
 
Regular Review 
There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it 
is not working effectively. 
 
Programming and Planning  
The Panel will have a programme of work assigned by the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. The 
Panel will be able to suggest additional topics for review through the O&SC for approval in the work 
programme. Before each topic is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what 
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to 
see. 
 
Managing Time 
The Panel will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of 
business will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses. 
Where possible, members should give advance notice of specific questions being provided at the time 
of the meeting to save items being deferred. 



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 

At a Meeting of the 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL 1  
 

Held on Tuesday, 13 March 2007 at 10.00 am 
The Town Hall, Queens Square, Attleborough 

 
PRESENT 
 

 

Mr P Cowen (Chairman) Mr K Martin 
Mr P Duigan (Vice-Chairman) Mr A Paines 
Mr A Joel Mr J Rogers 

 
In attendance 
 

 

Julie Britton - Committee Officer 
Mark Broughton - Scrutiny Officer 
Andrea Long - Environmental Planning Manager 
David Spencer - Principal Planning Policy Officer 

 
Also in attendance 
 

 

Mrs Tara Studholme Lyons Norfolk Primary Care Trust 
Miss Sarah Miles Inspire East 

 
  Action by 

22/07 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)  

  The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2007 were  confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 

23/07 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)  

 Apologies for absence were received from Mr S Askew, Mr R Key and Mrs P 
Spencer. 

 

24/07 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM 4)  

 Mr Cowen declared a personal but non-prejudicial interest in planning matters 
(Agenda items 6, 7, and 8).  The nature of his interest related to him being an 
architect. 

 

25/07 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
(AGENDA ITEM 5) 

 

 Mr B Rose, a Member of the Development Control Committee, was in 
attendance by invitation for Agenda items 6, 7, 8 and 9). 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

26/07 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK – HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE 
(AGENDA ITEM 6) 

 

 The Scrutiny Officer introduced Mrs Tara Studholme Lyons a representative 
from the Norfolk Primary Care Trust (PCT) who had been invited to attend the 
meeting. 

 

 Mrs Studholme Lyons, the Assistant Director of Commissioning for Localities 
(South), updated Members on the PCT’s recent re-organisation.   

 

 The Norfolk Primary Care Trust had been set up on 1 October 2006 and 
covered most of the county.  The organisation had three main roles: 

• Working with organisations, such as local authorities and voluntary 
organisations, to improve the health of local people  

• Commissioning health services which meant buying the right 
healthcare services for local patients, ranging from what was provided 
by GPs, dentists, pharmacists and opticians, community and other 
specialist services; to hospital care and mental health care  

• Providing a range of community health services, such as health 
visiting, district nursing, rehabilitation services, palliative care, 
community dental services, foot health and children’s health services.  

 

 Julie Garbutt had recently been appointed as the new Chief Executive for the 
Norfolk Primary Care Trust. She had been working at the PCT in an interim 
capacity since February this year. 

 

 The NHS had a framework of local organisations responsible for the 
healthcare of its community.  These included Strategic Health Authorities, 
NHS Trusts (and new Foundation Trusts) and Primary Care Trusts. 

 

 One of the key functions of the new Norfolk PCT was commissioning.  The 
PCT received most of its budget directly from the Department of Health and 
used this to purchase hospital and other services from NHS and other 
healthcare providers. It was also responsible for making payments to 
independent primary care contractors such as GPs, dentists, opticians and 
pharmacists. 

 

 Norfolk PCT also played a leading role in the event of a major emergency or 
incident, working with partner agencies such as the Police, Local Government 
and other NHS services. 

 

 A list of questions had been tabled and it was agreed that each would be 
answered in turn. 

 

 Planning for Health Facilities  

 1) Breckland is currently planning for at least 8,000 net new homes, 
including 5,000 net homes in Thetford, to 2021.  This should generate 
a further 12,000 people.  The evidence indicates that a significant 
proportion will be elderly (45% of the existing Breckland population is 
60 or over).  What programmes are in place to ensure that health 

 

2



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

provision will keep pace with the high level of development that 
Breckland is required to plan for in the next 15 years? 

 The PCT already had links with the Planning Team to discuss the future 
demand on Breckland’s health facilities.  The PCT had acknowledged this 
need and it was important that discussions took place now between the 
relevant organisations so that a suitable health service could be provided for 
a growing population. The Environmental Planning Manager advised that the 
PCT had been invited to attend two Parish Council meetings to discuss how 
Thetford was going to manage its future health issues; no-one from the PCT 
had attended. The Chairman felt that a message should be taken back to the 
new Chief Executive highlighting this non-attendance.  Mrs Studholme Lyons 
pointed out that the non-attendance had been due to the recent re-
organisation.  She asked that any future meeting dates be forwarded to her 
personally.  

 

 Another Member asked how many patients to a doctor there were in Watton.  
In response, Mrs Studholme Lyons advised that she could acquire detailed 
information of general practice provision.  The Chairman felt that the public 
had lost faith in the PCT; therefore, it was vitally important that the PCT be 
seen to positively demonstrate that it was listening to the public’s needs.  
Breckland had a growing population, healthcare was changing, and it was 
imperative that the PCT changed with it.   

 

 2) In the past, Local Plans reserved sites for new health facilities.  In the 
case of Breckland the site was eventually not required.  Should we be 
identifying (protecting) sites for health care facilities in the LDF? 

 

 This question was not answered during the debate.  

 3) How did the funding/delivery of a new doctor’s surgery come about?  
Did the PCT fund the delivery or was it a business decision by GPs? 

 

 It was explained that under the practice based commissioning doctors would 
have more vision and drive to move forward to improve services for their own 
populations. 

 

 Specialist Care  

 Evidence from Breckland’s Housing Market Assessment indicated that there 
was an increasing demand for accommodation to meet the needs of the frail 
elderly and people with physical disabilities.  If Breckland was to plan for a 
number of specialist houses/accommodation for these sectors, what policies 
or measures would the PCT have in place to support such an approach?  Did 
such housing need to be within a certain distance of GP/hospital? 

 

 The Chairman questioned the PCT’s resources.  Mrs Studholme Lyons 
explained that it was about using the resources that the PCT already had, not 
everyone needed to be admitted to hospital.  The PCT aimed to provide a 
service where it visited people in their own homes, to meet the needs of the 
frail and elderly who lived in the rural areas of Breckland.  Each of the former 
PCT areas of Norfolk already had dedicated community teams in place, 
delivering care in people’s own homes, and often providing an alternative to a 

 

3



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

hospital stay.  The way healthcare was provided had changed over the years 
and, by adjusting the balance of how services were currently delivered, it was 
believed that it would be possible to provide better, more responsive and cost 
effective care to all the population of the Norfolk PCT.  If change was not 
implemented, there would not be enough resources to meet the growing 
healthcare demands of Breckland’s population. The Chairman raised concern 
that the PCT would be taking from one element of resource to fund another; 
in his opinion, this was a lose lose situation.  He felt that the PCT should look 
at ways to increase its resources. 

 Mrs Studholme Lyons agreed with all the aforementioned concerns and 
assured Members that these matters would be taken into account and 
addressed.  She knew that dialogue and future planning were crucial, as well 
as how and where future resources should be targeted.  

 

 A Member was concerned that a great deal of money was being wasted on 
training doctors, when according to a national newspaper, 6,000 to 8,000 of 
them would not have a job to go to once the training had been completed.  
Further to this, he asked whether the PCT was a Member of the Community 
Health Council (CHC).  It was explained that the CHC had been replaced but 
it was at the top of the PCT agenda to get it up and running again. 

 

 Dentists  

 Consultation with local communities had often raised concerns about the lack 
of dentists to meet demand.  Did dentistry come within the PCT remit?  If not, 
what measures, other than market pressures (supply/demand) could 
Breckland pursue to make sure dentist provision kept pace with new house 
building and growing populations? 

 

 Dentistry did rest with the PCT; however, it was important to look at the health 
provision overall as it all sat within the same team.  All were classed as 
Primary Care Contractors and future needs and provision would be dealt with 
in the same way as everything else. 

 

 Members felt that it was important to attract further NHS dentists to the area.  
The PCT should look at the five main towns in Breckland and identify each of 
its individual needs.  Mrs Studholme Lyons explained that the PCT could not 
resolve everything at local level as it was a problem nationally. 

 

 Breckland  

 1) There was consultation currently around the future of Dereham 
Hospital and Swaffham Community Hospital.  What could the PCT 
advise on the future of the facilities in the context of planning for 
further development in these towns and their rural hinterlands? 

 

 The site at Dereham would host the NHS rehabilitation beds and would be 
redeveloped accordingly.  Swaffham Community Hospital would no longer 
house beds but would continue to provide a range of outpatient and 
community services. 

 

4



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

 2) What measures/policies would the PCT like the Breckland Local 
Development Framework to include that would improve public health?  
What could Breckland do to deliver ‘healthy’ developments? 

 

 The PCT had been talking to colleagues in public health and had also read 
Breckland’s Community Strategy which contained many good ideas.  Mrs 
Studholme Lyons explained that the purpose of attending this meeting was to 
find out how Breckland and the PCT could work and put their processes 
together.  It was also vitally important that the PCT worked with Breckland’s 
Environmental Planning Team. 

 

 3) The south of the District (Thetford/Weeting) look to higher order health 
care facilities through the West Suffolk hospital in Bury St Edmunds.  
Was there a cross-county co-operation/co-ordination on health care 
provision to ensure that Growth in Thetford would not result in 
difficulties at the West Suffolk hospital? 

 

 Mrs Studholme Lyons said that she would very much like to work with the 
West Suffolk Hospital; however, according to the views of the PCT, the two 
main hospitals for the area were based in Kings Lynn and Norwich.  The PCT 
had suggested that a strategic clinic be developed in Thetford as it would be 
far better for the local inhabitants. 

 

 A Member reminded the Panel about the lengthy consultations that had taken 
place concerning the closure of the Wayland Community Hospital. A 25,000 
signature petition had been gathered to keep it open for local people but still 
the NHS had decided to close it down.  The Member felt that the NHS had 
little or no intention of keeping the hospital open and felt that the 
consultations had been a waste of time and money.  In response, Mrs 
Studholme Lyons explained that the Intermediate Care Strategy was listening 
to the public.  It had incorporated excellent consultation methods which would 
head towards more honest consultations practices taking place in the future. 

 

 A Member felt that the main issue to tackle was the huge debts that the PCT 
had accumulated.  Members were informed that the PCT had to get back into 
financial balance by the end of March 2008.   The PCT was carefully 
reviewing where the funding was going to be spent.  It could not move 
forward in the areas that it wanted to while it was trying to achieve financial 
balance.  

 

 The Environmental Planning Manager asked whether there was cross border 
liaison, and whether there was a mechanism in place where the PCT could 
talk to its counterparts.  In response to this question Mrs Studholme Lyons 
explained that the Norfolk PCT had links with Suffolk and she hoped that any 
cross border issues could be addressed.  Members were informed that the 
PCT had a very clear agenda of what it was trying to achieve.  Its 
commitment was to work closely with Breckland Council and move things 
forward. 

 

 The Chairman thanked Mrs Studholme Lyons for attending the meeting and 
looked forward to having further discussions in the future. 

 

5



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

27/07 EAST OF ENGLAND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (EEDA) 
(AGENDA ITEM 7) 

 

 Sarah Miles, the Panel Co-ordinator of Inspire East, was in attendance.  The 
presentation was circulated in paper form. 

 

 It was clarified that EEDA was the host core funder and the accountable body 
for Inspire East. The Inspire East team was employed by EEDA and sat 
within the Sustainable Communities Directorate. 

 

 Regional Development Agencies had been charged with setting up Regional 
Centres of Excellence for Sustainable Communities by the Office of the 
Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) (now part of the Department of Communities 
and Local Government).  The East of England Development Agency (EEDA) 
had led the establishment of Inspire East, working with a wide range of 
organisations.  

 

 Sarah was responsible for the delivery of support through the Design Review 
Panel and Enablers Service.  She was the first point of contact for both of 
these Services.  Sarah co-ordinated submissions and meetings of the Design 
Review Panel and the matching of projects to Enablers.  She felt that these 
particular services would be of most use, and of most interest to this Panel. 

 

 Inspire East championed the creation of high quality places to live, work and 
visit.  Its aim was to deliver the knowledge, skills and advice that would 
inspire individuals and organisations to use and apply best practice. Inspire 
East had recruited experts from across the sustainable communities field to 
form an Enabling Panel.  

 

 Inspire East could draw Enablers from this Panel to add value and provide 
support to projects in the East of England. The provision of independent 
advice would help projects to overcome difficult issues and improve the 
scheme outcome.   

 

 The work of the Enabling Service offered advice on topics within the wide 
ranging Sustainable Communities agenda. The aim of Enabling was to help 
the service user to progress the project, rather than actually undertaking 
those tasks for them.  

 

 Inspire East Enabling Service was available to assist with:  

 • Schemes of regional significance as defined by their scale, nature or 
replicability.  

• Schemes which required help to progress the scheme themselves 
through facilitation, raising skill levels and early support.  

Service users would have to: 

 

 • Identify key areas requiring independent guidance  
 

 

6



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

• Take due consideration of the guidance and recommendations of the 
Enabler.  

 Outcome:  

 The contribution of the Enabler would strengthen the skill base and quality of 
the scheme through sharing knowledge and raising expectations.  

 

 An Enabler would usually be involved as early as possible in the project life 
cycle. They might be involved with assisting the user with the development of 
a brief for a project; advising on procurement or project set-up, assistance 
with community engagement; or providing guidance and help where a project 
might have stalled.  

 

 Design Review provided expert advice at an early stage in a project’s 
development, when it would have more influence. 

 

 The Design Review Panel was a service providing free direct advice to 
organisations which were seeking to build sustainable communities in the 
East of England.  This advice could focus on a wide range of built 
environment issues including commissioning new buildings, public realm 
design, master plans, urban frameworks or green space strategies. 

 

 The Design Review Panel consisted of 31 members each an expert in their 
own field such as architects, planners etc, both from the private and public 
sectors.  Architects were in the minority, as in most cases it was the layout 
and the area that was most significant. 

 

 Amongst the specific concerns raised by Members about the future of the 
Breckland area was the importance of infrastructure and matters of design 
issues.  In response to these concerns, Sarah advised that Inspire East could 
make representations to the Government Office, to champion infrastructure 
issues on this Region’s behalf.  As far as design was concerned, Sarah 
advised that everyone had a different idea of what was classed as a good 
design.   Planning Authorities that wanted an independent view of what was 
required in their own areas, were already requesting the services of Inspire 
East. 

 

 The Environmental Planning Manager asked about speed and timing in terms 
of live planning applications.  This was something that did not fit in with the 
timescale of the number of meetings held by the Design Review Panel.  The 
Design Review Panel, in carrying out a full design review, expected to meet 
formally 6 times in its first year, considering 4 schemes per meeting. 
However, in terms of the Enabling Support, it was just a matter of diary dates.  
The Design Review was being re-examined as it depended on the point the 
planning application had reached in the Design Review Panel’s cycle.  

 

 In concluding the discussions, the Chairman put the view that there were four 
areas in particular that Breckland Council should focus on: 

 

 • The Council should appoint a Member as the Design Champion for 
the Breckland area. 

 

7



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

 • The Council should engage the services offered by Inspire East to 
assist with Moving Thetford Forward. 

 

 • The growth of employment alongside the A11, particularly as far as 
Snetterton was concerned, was very important for Breckland.  Inspire 
East could provide the necessary support. 

 

 • Agents working on individual projects should be informed of what 
Inspire East could offer. 

 

 With regard to the second point above, the Environmental Planning Manager 
advised that assistance with Moving Thetford Forward was in hand.   

 

 The Chairman felt that it was very important that the Council open its eyes 
and embrace these services offered, as it was well known that Breckland was 
heading for great changes over the next 10 to 15 years.  With all this future 
growth, was Breckland going to have enough dentists, doctors and schools 
and suitable road network?  These matters required attention sooner rather 
than later. 

 

 A Member agreed with the above points.  In his area alone, hundreds of 
houses had been given permission yet there were only five places left in one 
particular school.  The other problem was money: contributions were not 
made available for education etc until the houses were built, when it should 
be the other way round.   

 

 In response to the above concerns, Sarah advised that this was where the 
Enabling Service could be of great assistance.  The Enabling Service had 
already instructed a particular developer in the South Norfolk region to deliver 
the school first before the houses were constructed. 

 

 The Principal Planning Policy Officer asked if there was a role or mechanism 
through which Inspire East could get involved in the LDF, such as Enabling 
Design and site specifics.  Sarah felt that consideration could be given to 
some kind of training generics in that area and that a design review would be 
valuable at such an early stage.  She would keep in contact with the Planning 
Policy Team on this matter. 

 

 On a final note the Chairman asked that EEDA be informed that the Highway 
Authority had made a decision that no further works would be carried out to 
the roundabout of the Thetford/Fiveways scheme. 

 

 The Chairman thanked Sarah for attending the meeting.  

28/07 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK – DEVELOPMENT CHOICES 
CONSULTATION MARCH 2007 (AGENDA ITEM 8) 

 

 This report informed Members of the content of the forthcoming ‘Development 
Choices – Issues and Options’ consultation, the results of which would be 
used to inform the preparation of the Core Strategy and Development Control 
Policies Development Plan Document.  The consultation focused around a 
number of key issues and options which had emerged since the last major 

 

8



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

LDF consultation in the Autumn of 2005.  At this stage a decision had not 
been made on the preferred way forward to deal with the issues. 

 The Principal Planning Policy Officer drew Members’ attention to section 5 of 
the report and explained that Appendix A, reproduced as a Development 
Choices booklet, would be mailed out to all 800 people on the Council’s LDF 
database, as well as Town and Parish Councils.  It would also be available to 
be picked up from one of the many road show sessions.  The Development 
Choices consultation would focus around informal drop-in sessions in the five 
towns.  These had been programmed for 10am – 2pm and 5pm – 7pm at the 
following locations: 

 

 • 20 March – Dereham Library  

 • 21 March – Wayland House, Watton  

 • 22 March – Attleborough Learning Centre  

 • 27 March – Carnegie Rooms, Thetford  

 • 28 March – Assembly Rooms, Swaffham  

 Paragraph 6.2 of the report highlighted the key issues to be consulted on.  
The Principal Planning Policy Officer asked Members if they had any 
questions pertaining to these issues. 

 

 Referring to page 12 of the Appendix to the report, a Member asked why the 
villages of Banham and East Harling had not been included as Service 
Centres.  The Principal Planning Policy Officer advised that there had been 
some debate with East Harling Parish Council on this matter, and in the case 
of Banham, there were still opportunities for growth within the existing 
guidelines.  The village of Old Buckenham was also mentioned.  It was felt 
that if the High School expansion project could be resolved further growth in 
that area could be envisaged.  The Primary Schools at Banham and Old 
Buckenham were continually full to capacity; therefore, it was felt that the 
suggested 50 net new homes for these areas was far too many. 

 

 Another Member was exasperated that Carbrooke had not been included as 
a Service Centre.  The Member accepted the fact that the village of 
Carbrooke did not have any shops or a post office but it was joined to the 
town of Watton.  He felt that this was deliberately denying the growth of the 
village.  In response, the Principal Planning Policy Officer pointed out that the 
Council was not discouraging growth.  If a planning application came through 
for a shop it would most probably be supported but there were certain criteria 
for a village to be classed as a Service Centre; for example: a shop and a 
post office, health facilities, a primary school, employment opportunities and 
public transport.  The Member was informed that he could raise his concern 
through the public consultation meeting, one of which was being held in 
Watton.  The Chairman challenged this view, as he felt that what was actually 
being said was, for a village to fit the criteria, it did not matter how many 
people lived in there as long as it had the facilities.  In Carbrooke’s case, it 
had a population of 3,000 but no facilities.   This village was going to be 
bigger than any other Service Centre in the Breckland area and therefore 
should have some recognition. 

 

9



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

 A Member wondered whether residential homes for the elderly had been 
included in the housing totals.  The Principal Planning Policy Officer pointed 
out that the figures had been based on independent dwellings.  Other 
facilities had not formed part of the overall housing figure. 

 

 Another Member asked why all other towns except for Dereham had 
significantly more new homes than new jobs.  Dereham seemed to be an 
oddity. The Principal Planning Officer agreed but advised that the figures had 
been based on a moratorium.  The 1000 houses allocated for Dereham was 
considered adequate as further expansion to existing school sites were now 
land locked.  The Chairman felt that the Local Education Authority should be 
informed to build more schools to assist with future growth.  This Council 
should start in a position of strength; Breckland should be in the ‘driving seat’.  
It was not national policy, it was all down to how a Section 106 Agreement 
was worded; the schools should be built before the houses. 

 

 Another issue raised was renewable energy. Breckland’s policies should 
encourage appropriate use of renewable energy.  For example, for every 150 
houses built on one site, the Council ought to be seen encouraging district 
heating systems and mini sewage treatment works.  This authority should be 
insisting on these issues through the planning process.  Current policies did 
not reflect strongly enough what developers needed to provide.  Further to 
this, insulation materials ought to be included in future policies.   

 

 The report was otherwise noted.  

29/07 GYPSIES AND TRAVELLERS: SINGLE ISSUE REVIEW OF THE DRAFT 
EAST OF ENGLAND PLAN (AGENDA ITEM 9) 

 

 Government Planning Circular 01/2006 required regional planning bodies to 
identify the number of caravan pitches required in each authority area to cater 
for Gypsy and Traveller needs.  The timetable was to undertake a 12 week 
public consultation in May 2007, followed by an Examination in Public before 
the regional gypsy and traveller policy was determined by Government in 
2009. 

 

 It would not be unreasonable at this early stage to raise comments on the 
evidence if it was considered that it was going to skew future public 
consultation undertaken by EERA on the issue or result in an unsound 
evidence base for the Breckland LDF.  Therefore there were two options 
available: 

 

 1) Note EERA’s research on Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Pitch 
Provision as part of the evidence base for the LDF, including the need 
for 13 permanent pitches in Breckland; 

 

 2) Raise comment on EERA’s research in advance of the forthcoming 
regional consultation on Gypsy and Traveller provision. 

 

 Option 1 would allow for consensus on the options for the LDF to be 
developed during 2007 in accordance with the LDF timetable.  Option 2 would 
require a further evidence base being developed and submitted to EERA. 

 

10



Policy Development and Review Panel 1 
13 March 2007 

 

 

  Action by 

 The evidence based findings had been highlighted at Table 1 of the report.  In 
Norfolk the level of need was for 94 additional permanent pitches by 2011.  
These figures had been set out in more detail at Appendix A of the report.  It 
was noted that the Districts of Broadland and North Norfolk designated no 
need; this lack of designation had caused some concern. 

 

 A Member was pleased to hear that there would be some form of consultation 
to be carried out, unlike the recent planning permission that had been agreed 
for a temporary site in Thetford. 

 

 At the conclusion of the debate, it was   

  RESOLVED that Option 7.1.2 of the report be agreed. David 
Spencer 

30/07 WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING SCHEDULE 
(AGENDA ITEM 10) 

 

 Future meetings of the Policy Development and Review Panel 1 were agreed 
as follows: 

 

 • Tuesday 22 May 2007 – 10.00 am   

 • Tuesday 19 June 2007 – 10.00 am   

 Venues to be arranged.  

31/07 DATE OF NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 11)  

 The arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday, 22 May 2007 at 10.00 
am were noted (meeting venue to be confirmed). 

 

 
The meeting closed at 12.20 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

11



  27 April 2007 

PD&RPanel1-WkProg&MtgSchedule 

  
 

 
 

Policy Development & Review Panel 1  
 

 Work Programme and Meeting Schedule 
 
 
 

Topic/Item Lead Officer(s) 13 Mar 
2007 
Dereham 

22 May 
2007 
Swaffham 

19 Jun 
2007  
Thetford 

Local 
Development 
Framework (LDF) 
 

Andrea Long 
David Spencer 

PCT 
(2) 
(3) 

  (1) 

Review of 
Development 
Control 
 

Phil Daines EEDA   

Local Transport 
Review  
 

Mark Broughton   One  

 
 
Key: 
 
 EEDA East of England Development Agency 
 PCT  Norfolk Primary Care Trust  
 One  “One” Railway Company 
 
 
Notes: 
 
(1) Development Choices Consultation Response 
(2) Development Choices Consultation 
(3) Gypsies and Travellers: Single Issue Review of the Draft East of England 
Plan 

Agenda Item 7

12


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Work Programme and Meeting Schedule

